MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
October 9, 2025

The Arkansas State Police Commission met on Thursday, October 9, 2025, at the Arkansas
State Police Headquarters, Little Rock, Arkansas.

Commission Chairman Allison called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Commissioner John Allison, Chairman
Commissioner Jim Hinkle, Vice Chairman
Commissioner Neff Basore
Commissioner Steve Edwards
Commissioner Mike Akin
Commissioner Jeff Teague

MEMBER ON CONFERENCE CALL:
Commissioner Ken Reeves, Secretary

STATE POLICE PERSONNEL ON CONFERENCE CALL:
Colonel Mike Hagar

STATE POLICE PERSONNEL PRESENT:

Lt. Colonel Jason Aaron

Lt. Colonel Mike Kennedy

Major Stacie Rhoads Major Ron Casey

Major Mike Moyer Sherry Woods

Eric Wacaster Kalika Rogers

Dan Mack Jenna Castleberry

Cindy Murphy Captain Dustin Morgan

Lieutenant Jay McAllister Captain Brad Lann

Captain Seth Pinner Captain Joe Carter

Lieutenant Jason Martin Captain Randall Murphy

Captain Chris Goodman Nick Genty

Teresa Hardy Rindi Snow

Captain Philip Hydron Major Roby Rhoads

Sergeant Chuck Lewis Karen Perry

Lieutenant Marcus Daniels Joan Shipley

Shelly Cantrell Donna Humphries
OTHERS PRESENT:

Sarah DeBusk-Griffin, AG Office

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Commission Chairman Allison led the pledge of allegiance.

NOTIFICATION OF MEDIA:

The media was notified of this meeting on September 30, 2025.

MINUTES:

Commission Chairman Allison stated you have the minutes of the prior meeting.
Commissioner Reeves made a motion to approve the minutes of September 11, 2025, regular
monthly commission meeting. Commissioner Hinkle seconded the motion. Commission
Chairman Allison stated we have a motion and second, any opposed, the motion carried.

Commission Chairman Allison stated next, we have Weapon Resolutions, Major Ron Casey.

WEAPON RESOLUTIONS:

Major Ron Casey presented the following resolutions for consideration by the ASP
Commission.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
October 9, 2025 — Page 2

WHEREAS: Sergeant Raymond Triplett efficiently and effectively served the
Arkansas State Police for a period of twenty-seven years, and eight
days;

WHEREAS: Sergeant Raymond Triplett retired from this department August 31,
2025;

WHEREAS: His departure creates a vacancy that will be most difficult to fill, which
is recognized by each and every member of the Arkansas State Police
Commission,;

WHEREAS: Sergeant Raymond Triplett has made formal request that his service
weapon be retired with him and remain in his possession;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: The Arkansas State Police Commission, in its regular
meeting at Arkansas State Police Headquarters in Little Rock, Arkansas on Thursday,
October 9, 2025, in accordance with Act 547 of 2003 awards him, his Glock Model 17, Serial
Number BMSA494, as a token of their esteem and appreciation for service devoted to the
Arkansas State Police.

Commissioner Edwards made a motion to approve the above weapon resolution presented to
the Commission. Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission Chairman
Allison stated we have a motion and a second, any opposed, motion carried.

WHEREAS: Sergeant Raymond Triplett efficiently and effectively served the
Arkansas State Police for a period of twenty-seven years, and eight
days;

WHEREAS: Sergeant Raymond Triplett retired from this department August 31,
2025;

WHEREAS: His departure creates a vacancy that will be most difficult to fill, which
is recognized by each and every member of the Arkansas State Police
Commission,;

WHEREAS: Sergeant Raymond Triplett has made formal request that his shotgun
be retired with him and remain in his possession;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED: The Arkansas State Police Commission, in its regular
meeting at Arkansas State Police Headquarters in Little Rock, Arkansas on Thursday,
October 9, 2025, in accordance with Act 547 of 2003 determines the fair market value of the
Remington shotgun, serial number D023120M, that Sergeant Raymond Triplett has carried
be affixed at $100.00, and that Sergeant Raymond Triplett be permitted to purchase the
shotgun for his personal use.

Commissioner Edwards made a motion to approve the above weapon resolution presented to
the Commission. Commissioner Basore seconded the motion. Commission Chairman
Allison stated we have a motion and a second, any opposed, motion carried.

Commission Chairman Allison stated next, we have division reports, Karen Perry, Fiscal
Section.

Karen Perry stated good morning, I don’t have a lot to report for September. Karen Perry
stated we should be about 25%, this is the first quarter, and we are operating right about that,

so I would be happy to answer any questions.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Administrative Services, Major Roby Rhoads.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
October 9, 2025 — Page 3

Major Roby Rhoads stated good morning, for our report of last month we had three military
deployments.

Major Roby Rhoads stated on the troop school, which is currently going on, we have 50
recruits left, so we have lost a few.

Commissioner Hinkle asked how many is a few Major? Major Roby Rhoads stated two quit
before school started and we have had 15 leave since school started. Commissioner Hinkle
stated so 17 down from the max possible. Commission Chairman Allison asked how did two
of them quit before you even start. Major Roby Rhoads stated one was for personal reasons
and the second one decided to stay with his current job.

Major Roby Rhoads stated our POLAR Team last month assisted 68 individuals and had 21
follow-up visits. Major Roby Rhoad stated we conducted chaplain training last month and
we have 85 certified chaplains now and that number will continue to grow. Major Roby
Rhoads stated a big addition to our POLAR Team is Ruger Hardy, a little dog that comes in
and visits people and Teresa keeps him back there in the office. You can’t be in a bad mood
when Ruger comes in and you can follow him on Instagram.

Major Roby Rhoads stated for the ASP Health Plan we received over $25,000.00 in subsidies
from Part B for last month, then we had about $237.00 in claims roll over from the previous
month. Major Roby Rhoads stated our claims were $129,492.00 higher than the previous
month.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Kalika Rogers, Crimes Against Children.

Kalika Rogers stated good morning, Colonel, Chair, Commissioners, the CACD Hotline
received 6,680 contacts in September, with 2,972 of those accepted for investigation. Kalika
Rogers stated there were 18 child deaths that were reported, we investigated six of those and
assessed 12 of those. Kalika Rogers stated our CACD investigations unit received 593 new
investigations, and we closed 484 cases, with 138 of those being true, so that gave us a
substantiation rate of 29% for the month.

Commission Chairman Allison stated I read about one yesterday, somebody being prosecuted
that had been complained on multiple times, 12-15 times that was called in and we had not
done anything about it or we checked it out and decided it was not real and now there is
actually a case being brought against I don’t know if it is the parents or custodian, do you
know what I am talking about? Kalika stated I believe I saw it in the news; I can’t confirm
that CACD had anything to do with that. Commissioner Edwards stated I think it was DHS.
Lt. Colonel Aaron asked do you want me to come up there and Kalika stated sure I have to
be very careful of my words when it comes to these discussions. Lt. Colonel Aaron stated I
am assuming this is the case in Mountain Home, Baxter County that you may be referencing,
it is actually a DHS case. Lt. Colonel Aaron stated it was brought to the news I think in
November 2024 is when Mountain Home Police Department started this investigation and it
started kind of backwards, instead of being called in to the Hotline at that point, it started at
the local police department, and they initiated the investigation. Lt. Colonel Aaron explained
they looked to see how many times calls were made on this family or the victim, they got to
looking and it had been called in 29 times and our Hotline processed that call correctly. Lt.
Colonel Aaron stated so ASP wise, it was looked into and investigated and our CACD Hotline
Operators did their job and did it appropriately. Lt. Colonel Aaron stated, but once it got
kicked out, once they accept those calls, they either get deferred to DHS/DCFS or to CACD
or they get screened out. Those 29 times it was kicked over to DCFS/DHS and there was a
hearing held yesterday, where CACD and DCFS were held at the table at the Capitol. Lt.
Colonel Aaron stated the hearing was to determine what went wrong on that call. As far as
ASP CACD, they did their job correctly. Commission Chairman Allison stated thank you
for that Lt. Colonel, appreciate it.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Criminal Investigations, Major Stacie Rhoads.

Major Stacie Rhoads stated good morning, Colonel, Chairman, Commissioners, for the
month of September we initiated 121 cases, 21 of those were death investigations, four of
which were homicides, we conducted two officer involved shootings and one officer criminal
misconduct investigation. We made 55 felony arrests, we conducted 99 crime scene searches,



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
October 9, 2025 — Page 4

conducted 97 hours of surveillance, conducted 366 interviews, we executed 125 search
warrants, and we spent 36 hours in court and did five crime scene scans with our FARO
scanners. Major Stacie Rhoads stated you know we have had a lot of really good success
with our cases over the last month and I kind of want to talk to you about some of the
significant convictions that we saw for September. Major Stacie Rhoads stated one was out
of Searcy County, an investigation initiated by Special Agent Becky Vacco; it was a horrible
case where a young woman reported being repeatedly raped by her father. In a recent trial,
he received nine life sentences, that was excellent work. Major Stacie Rhoads stated out of
Searcy County you remember last summer we responded to a case where a man dismembered
his wife and videotaped it, he recently pled to life without parole. Major Stacie Rhoads stated
I think it was last April, we responded to an after-prom party in Phillips County, that went to
trial last week and the man received life without, plus 15 years for that shooting. It was an
18-year-old kid out with his date at this party, and he was shot down. Major Stacie Rhoads
stated in St. Francis County, ya’ll may remember some of these news releases that came out
that there was a doctor in Forrest City who was accused of sexually assaulting his patients, I
believe he was convicted of five of those reports that we took and was sentenced to the
Department of Corrections. Major Stacie Rhoads stated in Washington County we held a
capital murder trial for a man accused of killing his wife in 2021, he received a life sentence
without parole. Major Stacie Rhoads stated then significantly in Crittenden County, which
was one of the death by deliver cases, there was a woman that was in jail and she died of a
drug overdose and we were able to prosecute the woman that slipped her the drugs and she
received a ten year sentence, so I just kind of wanted to highlight some of the work that we
have done that has resulted in some significant convictions across the state.

Commission Chairman Allison stated Highway Patrol, Major Ron Casey.

Major Ron Casey stated numbers for Highway Patrol for September, troopers made 2,371
criminal arrests, with 1,547 persons being arrested. Major Casey stated troopers made 283
DWTI arrests and 8 DUI arrests, and issued 6,574 citations for hazardous arrests, resulting in
515 physical arrests from those violations. Troopers issued 16,547 citations, assisted 2,744
motorists and pursuits were up this month quite a bit to 52. They investigated 1,285 crashes
with 31 of those being fatalities. Troopers recovered 11 stolen vehicles with a net worth of
about $152,000.00, and stolen property worth about $8,900.00 was recovered. Troopers
drove 917,879 miles in September. Major Casey stated we had six SWAT missions and had
40 hours of training to train our two newest members and twenty-three members of other
agencies. Major Casey stated we had 15 aircraft missions, there were 19,788 DL/CDL tests
given, and dispatch received 26,800 calls for service. The Interstate Criminal Patrol and other
troopers confiscated $507,270.00 in cash, they confiscated 219 pounds of marijuana, 62
pounds of methamphetamine, 367 pounds of cocaine, there were 400 pills confiscated
including hydrocodone, oxycodone, amoxicillin, MDMX, Zanax, alprazolam and 1.8 pounds
of other illicit drugs including THC gummies, liquid, and THC vapes were confiscated.

Commission Chairman Allison stated I read about an accident, remember the one over around
Newport where they were burning off the field last year or year before last and some people
got killed. Commission Chairman Allison stated we had another incident of that I think
Eastern Arkansas, as [ remember. Major Casey stated yes, it was in ummm. Commission
Chairman Allison stated Lepanto, that area and Major Casey stated yes sir. Major Casey
stated it was the same thing; they were burning fields, that happened last week. Commission
Chairman Allison asked should troopers, should we be taking any kind of action, stopping
the traffic, I mean obviously two cars, the first car hit the back of a truck and spun off into
the ditch and then the next car came in and hit the back of the truck. Major Casey stated the
problem with those is it is like dense fog, some of them will slow down but too slow, and
other people will not slow down, so I don’t know if the troopers would be able to do anything
about it, unless they get the road blocked prior to that smoke crossing. Commissioner Basore
stated you cannot predict where it is going to cross. Major Casey stated no, and you cannot
keep the farmers from burning their fields. Commission Chairman Allison stated I think there
is a lawsuit at Newport, and I suspect there will be a lawsuit here too. Major Casey stated it
will take some case law to change that. Lt. Colonel Aaron stated the first one they charged
someone criminally.

Commission Chairman Allison stated next is Regulatory and Building Operations, Major
Mike Moyer.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
October 9, 2025 — Page 5

Major Mike Moyer stated Mr. Chairman, Commissioners and Colonel Hagar good morning,
during the month of September, the Identification Bureau and AFIS Section processed 25,140
civil background checks and 8,679 criminal fingerprint submissions. The Used Motor
Vehicle Dealer Section processed 258 dealer applications. The PI Security Section processed
652 applications. The Fire Investigators conducted seven origin and cause investigations,
and the Bomb Squad handled four explosive calls.

Major Moyer stated a quick update on the barracks; last week Kinco had what they call a dry
in celebration, basically all the buildings are in the dry. Major Moyer stated the single-story
building is being painted, they are getting ready to move forward with flooring, and on the
two-story building they are finishing up the drywall. They still have a target date of May to
June of 2026 for completion.

Commission Chairman Allison asked do we have funds to complete that? Major Moyer
stated yes sir, to complete what we are currently building.

Commission Chairman Allison stated new business, are we going into executive session?
Commissioner Basore stated I believe we have three promotions and some other matters to
discuss in Executive Session.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Commissioner Basore stated Mr. Chairman I would move that the Commission enter into
Executive Session for the purpose of considering promotions of employees. Commissioner
Edwards seconded, and the motion passed. Commission Chairman Allison asked anyone
opposed and stated we will return. The Commission went into the Executive Session at 10:20
a.m.

At 10:44 a.m., Commission Chairman Allison stated we are back in the open meeting,
Colonel is on the phone, Colonel, don’t you have some recommendations?

Colonel Hagar stated yes sir we have three recommendations for the Commission to consider
for promotions.

Colonel Hagar stated the first I would recommend Corporal Christiana McKibben for the
Director’s Office, Office of Professional Standard Sergeant. Commissioner Hinkle made a
motion that Corporal Christiana McKibben be promoted to Sergeant in the Director’s Office,
Office of Professional Standards. Commissioner Teague seconded the motion. Commission
Chairman Allison stated we have a motion, and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye,
the motion carries.

Colonel Hagar stated the second is also in the Director’s Office, Office of Professional
Standard Sergeant, my recommendation is Corporal Dean Pitchford. Commissioner Hinkle
made a motion that Corporal Dean Pitchford be promoted to Sergeant in the Director’s Office,
Office of Professional Standards. Commissioner Akin seconded the motion. Commission
Chairman Allison stated we have a motion, and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye,
the motion carries.

Colonel Hagar stated the last one, my recommendation is TFC Michael Kyle Ellison for the
Sergeant position in the Administrative Services Division, Armory. Commissioner Hinkle
made a motion that TFC Michael Kyle Ellison be promoted to Sergeant in the Administrative
Services Division, Armory. Commissioner Teague seconded the motion. Commission
Chairman Allison stated we have a motion and a second, any discussion, all in favor say aye,
all those opposed, so ordered.

NEXT MEETING:

Commission Chairman Allison asked Donna Humphries when is our next meeting? Donna
Humphries stated tentatively it is scheduled for November 13, that is the second Thursday.



MINUTES OF ARKANSAS STATE POLICE COMMISSION MEETING
October 9, 2025 — Page 6

Commission Chairman Allison asked anybody with an objection to that? Commission

Chairman Allison stated the next commission meeting will be held on Thursday, November
13, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in Little Rock, Arkansas.

Commission Chairman Allison asked does anyone else have any business to come before the
Commission, if not, I will adjourn the meeting at 10:48 a.m.

Commission Chairman

Commission Secretary



